

STATE OF MINNESOTA

EIGHTY-SEVENTH SESSION — 2011

 FORTY-EIGHTH DAY

SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA, WEDNESDAY, MAY 4, 2011

The House of Representatives convened at 4:30 p.m. and was called to order by Kurt Zellers, Speaker of the House.

Prayer was offered by the Reverend Grady St. Dennis, House Chaplain.

The members of the House gave the pledge of allegiance to the flag of the United States of America.

The roll was called and the following members were present:

| | | | | | |
|--------------|------------|-----------|------------|--------------|--------------|
| Abeler | Davnie | Hansen | Laine | Morrow | Scalze |
| Anderson, B. | Dean | Hausman | Lanning | Mullery | Schomacker |
| Anderson, D. | Dettmer | Hayden | Leidiger | Murdock | Scott |
| Anderson, P. | Dill | Hilstrom | LeMieur | Murphy, E. | Shimanski |
| Anderson, S. | Dittrich | Hilty | Lenczewski | Murphy, M. | Simon |
| Anzelc | Doepke | Holberg | Lesch | Murray | Slawik |
| Atkins | Downey | Hoppe | Liebling | Myhra | Slocum |
| Banaian | Drazkowski | Hornstein | Lillie | Nelson | Stensrud |
| Barrett | Eken | Hortman | Loeffler | Nornes | Swedzinski |
| Beard | Erickson | Hosch | Lohmer | Norton | Thissen |
| Benson, J. | Fabian | Howes | Loon | O'Driscoll | Tillberry |
| Benson, M. | Falk | Huntley | Mack | Paymar | Torkelson |
| Bills | Fritz | Johnson | Mahoney | Pelowski | Urdahl |
| Brynaert | Garofalo | Kahn | Mariani | Peppin | Vogel |
| Buesgens | Gauthier | Kath | Marquart | Persell | Wagenius |
| Carlson | Gottwalt | Kelly | Mazorol | Petersen, B. | Ward |
| Champion | Greene | Kieffer | McDonald | Peterson, S. | Wardlow |
| Clark | Greiling | Kiel | McElfrick | Poppe | Westrom |
| Cornish | Gruenhagen | Kiffmeyer | McFarlane | Quam | Winkler |
| Crawford | Gunther | Knuth | McNamara | Rukavina | Woodard |
| Daudt | Hackbarth | Koenen | Melin | Runbeck | Spk. Zellers |
| Davids | Hancock | Kriesel | Moran | Sanders | |

A quorum was present.

Franson, Hamilton and Smith were excused.

The Chief Clerk proceeded to read the Journal of the preceding day. There being no objection, further reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal was approved as corrected by the Chief Clerk.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES AND DIVISIONS

Shimanski from the Committee on Judiciary Policy and Finance to which was referred:

H. F. No. 264, A bill for an act relating to civil actions; prohibiting actions against certain persons for weight gain as a result of consuming certain foods; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 604.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass.

The report was adopted.

Garofalo from the Committee on Education Finance to which was referred:

H. F. No. 392, A bill for an act relating to education; requiring crossing control arms on school buses; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 169.4503, by adding a subdivision.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 1, after line 4, insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 169.4501, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **National standards adopted.** Except as provided in sections 169.4502 and 169.4503, the construction, design, equipment, and color of types A, B, C, D school buses and multifunction school activity buses used for the transportation of school children shall meet the requirements of the ~~"bus chassis standards" and "bus body standards and chassis specifications"~~ "standards and chassis specifications" in the ~~2005~~ 2010 edition of the "National School Transportation Specifications and Procedures" adopted by the National Congress on School Transportation. Except as provided in section 169.4504, the construction, design, and equipment of types A, B, C, D school buses and multifunction school activity buses used for the transportation of students with disabilities also shall meet the requirements of the "specially equipped school bus ~~standards specifications~~" in the ~~2005~~ 2010 National School Transportation Specifications and Procedures. The ~~"bus chassis standards," "bus body standards, and chassis specifications" and "specially equipped school bus standards specifications"~~ sections of the 2005 2010 edition of the "National School Transportation Specifications and Procedures," adopted by the Fifteenth National Congress on School Transportation, are incorporated by reference in this chapter.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 169.4501, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Applicability.** (a) The standards adopted in this section and sections 169.4502 and 169.4503, govern the construction, design, equipment, and color of school buses used for the transportation of school children, when owned or leased and operated by a school or privately owned or leased and operated under a contract with a school. Each school, its officers and employees, and each person employed under the contract is subject to these standards.

(b) The standards apply to school buses manufactured after December 31, ~~2007~~ 2011. Buses complying with the standards when manufactured need not comply with standards established later except as specifically provided for by law.

(c) A school bus manufactured on or before December 31, ~~2007~~ 2011, must conform to the Minnesota standards in effect on the date the vehicle was manufactured except as specifically provided for in law.

(d) A new bus body may be remounted on a used chassis provided that the remounted vehicle meets state and federal standards for new buses which are current at the time of the remounting. Permission must be obtained from the commissioner of public safety before the remounting is done. A used bus body may not be remounted on a new or used chassis.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 169.4503, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. **Colors.** Fenderettes may be black. The beltline may be painted yellow over black or black over yellow. The rub rails shall be black. The area around the lenses of alternately flashing signal lamps extending outward from the edge of the lamp three inches, plus or minus one-quarter inch, to the sides and top and at least one inch to the bottom, shall be black. Visors or hoods, black in color, with a minimum of four inches may be provided.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 169.4503, subdivision 20, is amended to read:

Subd. 20. **Seat and crash barriers.** ~~(a)~~ All restraining barriers and passenger seats shall be covered with a material that has fire retardant or fire block characteristics.

~~(b) All seats must have a minimum cushion depth of 15 inches and a seat back height of at least 20 inches above the seating reference point, and beginning October 21, 2009, must also conform to the Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standard in Code of Federal Regulations, title 49, section 571.222."~~

Page 1, after line 10, insert:

"Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 169.4503, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 29. **Auxiliary fans.** Additional auxiliary fans are required for school buses manufactured on or after December 31, 2011, and shall meet the following requirements:

(a) Fans for the left and right sides of the windshield shall be placed in a location where they can be adjusted for maximum effectiveness and where they do not obstruct vision to any mirror. Type A buses may be equipped with one fan.

(b) Fans shall be a minimum of six inches in diameter.

(c) Fan blades shall be covered with a protective cage. Each fan shall be controlled by a separate switch.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 169.4503, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 30. **Video/mobile surveillance systems.** Camera heads for video/mobile surveillance may be mounted in the driver compartment area, mid-bus, or on a rear interior bulkhead in the student passenger area. For buses manufactured or retrofitted with a surveillance system after December 31, 2011, cameras mounted mid-bus must be parallel to a seat back, must not have any sharp edges, must not extend outward more than three inches, and must be located within 24 inches of the top of the side window of the bus.

Sec. 8. **REPEALER.**

Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 169.454, subdivision 10, is repealed."

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 2, delete "requiring crossing control arms on school buses" and insert "modifying provisions relating to school bus safety and standards"

Correct the title numbers accordingly

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass.

The report was adopted.

Gottwalt from the Committee on Health and Human Services Reform to which was referred:

H. F. No. 637, A bill for an act relating to health; modifying an exemption to the food, beverage, and lodging establishments statutes; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 157.22.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 157.15, subdivision 12b, is amended to read:

Subd. 12b. **School concession stand.** "School concession stand" means a food and beverage service establishment located in a school, on school grounds, or within a school-owned athletic complex, that is operated in conjunction with school-sponsored events. A school kitchen or school cafeteria is not a school concession stand.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 157.22, is amended to read:

157.22 EXEMPTIONS.

This chapter does not apply to:

- (1) interstate carriers under the supervision of the United States Department of Health and Human Services;
- (2) weddings, fellowship meals, or funerals conducted by a faith-based organization using any building constructed and primarily used for religious worship or education;
- (3) any building owned, operated, and used by a college or university in accordance with health regulations promulgated by the college or university under chapter 14;
- (4) any person, firm, or corporation whose principal mode of business is licensed under sections 28A.04 and 28A.05, is exempt at that premises from licensure as a food or beverage establishment; provided that the holding of any license pursuant to sections 28A.04 and 28A.05 shall not exempt any person, firm, or corporation from the applicable provisions of this chapter or the rules of the state commissioner of health relating to food and beverage service establishments;
- (5) family day care homes and group family day care homes governed by sections 245A.01 to 245A.16;
- (6) nonprofit senior citizen centers for the sale of home-baked goods;

(7) fraternal, sportsman, or patriotic organizations that are tax exempt under section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), 501(c)(6), 501(c)(7), 501(c)(10), or 501(c)(19) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or organizations related to ~~or~~ affiliated with, or supported by such fraternal, sportsman, or patriotic organizations. ~~Such organizations may organize events~~ for events held in the building or on the grounds of the organization and at which home-prepared food is donated by organization members for sale at the events, provided:

- (i) the event is not a circus, carnival, or fair;
- (ii) the organization controls the admission of persons to the event, the event agenda, or both; and
- (iii) the organization's licensed kitchen is not used in any manner for the event;

(8) food not prepared at an establishment and brought in by individuals attending a potluck event for consumption at the potluck event. An organization sponsoring a potluck event under this clause may advertise the potluck event to the public through any means. Individuals who are not members of an organization sponsoring a potluck event under this clause may attend the potluck event and consume the food at the event. Licensed food establishments other than schools cannot be sponsors of potluck events. A school may sponsor and hold potluck events in areas of the school other than the school's kitchen, provided that the school's kitchen is not used in any manner for the potluck event. For purposes of this clause, "school" means a public school as defined in section 120A.05, subdivisions 9, 11, 13, and 17, or a nonpublic school, church, or religious organization at which a child is provided with instruction in compliance with sections 120A.22 and 120A.24. Potluck event food shall not be brought into a licensed food establishment kitchen;

(9) a home school in which a child is provided instruction at home;

(10) school concession stands ~~operated in conjunction with school sponsored events on school property are exempt from the 21 day restriction; and~~ servicing commercially prepared, nonpotentially hazardous foods, as defined in Minnesota Rules, chapter 4626;

(11) group residential facilities of ten or fewer beds licensed by the commissioner of human services under Minnesota Rules, chapter 2960, provided the facility employs or contracts with a certified food manager under Minnesota Rules, part 4626.2015;

(12) food served at fund-raisers, or community events conducted in the building or on the grounds of a faith-based organization, provided that a certified food manager, or a volunteer trained in a food safety course, trains the food preparation workers in safe food handling practices. This exemption does not apply to faith-based organizations at the state or county fairs or to faith-based organizations that choose to apply for a license; and

(13) food service events conducted following a disaster for purposes of feeding disaster relief staff and volunteers servicing commercially prepared, nonpotentially hazardous foods, as defined in Minnesota Rules, chapter 4626."

Correct the title numbers accordingly

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

The report was adopted.

Gottwalt from the Committee on Health and Human Services Reform to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1018, A bill for an act relating to health; providing an exception to the hospital moratorium; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 144.551, subdivision 1.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass.

The report was adopted.

Gunther from the Committee on Jobs and Economic Development Finance to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1032, A bill for an act relating to employment; modifying certain prevailing hours of labor requirements; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 177.42, subdivision 4.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

The report was adopted.

Garofalo from the Committee on Education Finance to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1179, A bill for an act relating to pupil transportation; modifying pupil transportation provisions; clarifying Department of Education's role in maintaining training programs; including use of certain lift buses in the category of revenue authorized for reimbursement; including actual contracted transportation costs as a method for allocating pupil transportation costs; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, sections 123B.88, subdivision 13; 123B.90, subdivision 3; 123B.92, subdivision 1.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass.

The report was adopted.

Davids from the Committee on Taxes to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1261, A bill for an act relating to metropolitan government; providing for the additional financing of metropolitan area transit and paratransit capital expenditures; authorizing the issuance of certain obligations; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 473.39, by adding a subdivision.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass.

The report was adopted.

Shimanski from the Committee on Judiciary Policy and Finance to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1270, A bill for an act relating to public safety; expanding e-charging to include citations, juvenile adjudication, and implied consent test refusal or failure; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 299C.41, subdivision 1.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

The report was adopted.

Lanning from the Committee on State Government Finance to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1360, A bill for an act relating to environment; modifying the Environmental Quality Board and eliminating and reassigning duties; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, sections 17.114, subdivision 3; 18B.045; 18E.06; 103A.204; 103B.101, subdivision 9; 103B.151; 103B.315, subdivision 5; 103F.751; 103H.151, subdivision 4; 103H.175, subdivision 3; 115B.20, subdivision 6; 116C.24, subdivision 2; 116C.842, subdivisions 1a, 2a; 116C.91, subdivision 2; 116D.11, subdivisions 2, 3; 216C.052, subdivision 1; 216C.18, subdivision 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 116D; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2010, sections 40A.122; 103A.403; 103A.43; 103F.614; 115A.32; 115A.33; 115A.34; 115A.35; 115A.36; 115A.37; 115A.38; 115A.39; 116C.02; 116C.03, subdivisions 1, 2, 2a, 3a, 4, 5, 6; 116C.04, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 7, 10, 11; 116C.06; 116C.08; 116C.71, subdivisions 1c, 2a; 116C.721; 116C.722; 116C.724, subdivisions 2, 3; 473H.15.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Environment, Energy and Natural Resources Policy and Finance.

The report was adopted.

Garofalo from the Committee on Education Finance to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1381, A bill for an act relating to education; providing for policy for prekindergarten through grade 12 education, including general education, education excellence, special programs, facilities and technology, early childhood education, and student transportation; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, sections 11A.16, subdivision 5; 13.32, subdivision 6; 119A.50, subdivision 3; 120A.22, subdivision 11; 120A.24; 120A.40; 120B.023, subdivision 2; 120B.11; 120B.12; 120B.30, subdivisions 1, 3, 4; 120B.31, subdivision 4; 120B.36, subdivisions 1, 2; 121A.15, subdivision 8; 121A.17, subdivision 3; 122A.09, subdivision 4; 122A.14, subdivision 3; 122A.16, as amended; 122A.18, subdivision 2; 122A.23, subdivision 2; 122A.40, subdivisions 5, 11, by adding a subdivision; 122A.41, subdivisions 1, 2, 5a, 10, 14; 123B.41, subdivisions 2, 5; 123B.57; 123B.63, subdivision 3; 123B.71, subdivision 5; 123B.72, subdivision 3; 123B.75, subdivision 5; 123B.88, by adding a subdivision; 123B.92, subdivisions 1, 5; 124D.091, subdivision 2; 124D.36; 124D.37; 124D.38, subdivision 3; 124D.385, subdivision 3; 124D.39; 124D.40; 124D.42, subdivisions 6, 8; 124D.44; 124D.45, subdivision 2; 124D.52, subdivision 7; 124D.871; 125A.02, subdivision 1; 125A.15; 125A.51; 125A.79, subdivision 1; 126C.10, subdivision 8a; 126C.15, subdivision 2; 126C.41, subdivision 2; 127A.42, subdivision 2; 127A.43; 127A.45, by adding a subdivision; 171.05, subdivision 2; 171.17, subdivision 1; 171.22, subdivision 1; 181A.05, subdivision 1; Laws 2011, chapter 5, section 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 120B; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2010, sections 120A.26, subdivisions 1, 2; 124D.38, subdivisions 4, 5, 6; 125A.54; 126C.457.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 8, after line 8, insert:

"Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 127A.30, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Membership and terms.** (a) A state Permanent School Fund Advisory Committee is established to advise the Department of Natural Resources on the management of permanent school fund land, which is held in trust for the school districts of the state.

(b) The advisory committee must consist of the following persons or their designees: the chairs of the education committees of the legislature, the chairs of the legislative committees with jurisdiction over the K-12 education budget, the chairs of the legislative committees with jurisdiction over the environment and natural resources policy and budget, the chair of the senate Committee on Finance and the chair of the house of representatives Committee

on Ways and Means, one member of the house of representatives of the minority party appointed by the minority leader, one senator of the minority party appointed pursuant to the rules of the senate, the commissioner of education, one superintendent from a nonmetropolitan district, one superintendent from a metropolitan area district, one person with expertise on school finance matters, one person with an expertise in forestry, one person with an expertise in minerals and mining, one person with an expertise in real estate development, one person with an expertise in renewable energy, one person with an expertise in finance and land management, and one person with an expertise in natural resource conservation. The school district superintendents and the member with expertise on school finance matters shall be appointed by the commissioner of education. The committee members with areas of expertise in forestry, minerals and mining, real estate development, renewable energy, finance and land management, and natural resource conservation shall be appointed by the commissioner of natural resources. Members of the legislature shall be given the opportunity to recommend candidates for vacancies on the committee to the commissioners of education and natural resources. The advisory committee must also include a nonvoting member appointed by the commissioner of natural resources.

(c) The commissioner of natural resources shall provide administrative support to the committee.

(d) The members of the committee shall serve without compensation. The members of the Permanent School Fund Advisory Committee shall elect their chair and are bound by the provisions of sections 43A.38 and 116P.09, subdivision 6.

(e) The terms of members appointed by the commissioners of education and natural resources are staggered four-year terms according to section 15.059, subdivision 2. Members may be reappointed at the pleasure of the appointing authority. Members are subject to removal according to section 15.059, subdivision 4.

(f) The other members of the Permanent School Fund Advisory Committee serve at the pleasure of their respective appointing authorities and their terms expire upon the appointment of their successors.

EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective the day following final enactment."

Page 14, line 2, after "curriculum" insert "that includes, among other measures to improve teaching and learning, a performance-based system for annually evaluating school principals under section 123B.147, subdivision 3"

Page 16, line 9, after "(a)" insert "The provisions in this section are designed"

Page 16, line 13, delete ", and" and insert a period

Page 16, line 28, delete "difficulty" and insert "deficiency"

Page 16, line 29, delete "intervention" and insert "interventions"

Page 17, line 2, after "exception" insert "under paragraph (f)"

Page 17, line 3, delete ", consistent with paragraph (f)"

Page 17, line 4, after "a" insert "school site within a" and after "or" insert "a"

Page 17, line 14, delete "and"

Page 17, after line 14, insert:

"(6) the educational risks of promoting a grade 3 student to grade 4 who is not grade-level proficient in reading; and"

Page 17, line 15, delete "(6)" and insert "(7)"

Page 17, line 18, after "the" insert "school site within the" and after "or" insert "the"

Page 17, delete lines 20 to 24 and insert "The parent of a student who is not reading at grade level at the end of grade 3 and does not qualify for a good cause exception may ask to meet with a school administrator, the student's classroom teacher, and other qualified school professionals such as the school's reading teacher or school counselor to consider whether to promote the student to grade 4 or retain the student in grade 3. A school site or charter school must comply with the parent's meeting request in a timely manner and before the end of the current school year. If, after the meeting, the parent objects to retaining the student, the parent must sign a school form stating that the parent opposes retaining the student and understands the educational risks of promoting a grade 3 student to grade 4 who is not grade-level reading proficient and the school site or charter school must promote the otherwise qualified student to grade 4."

Page 18, line 26, after "teacher" insert "and parent"

Page 19, line 5, delete "in" and insert "entering"

Page 19, line 21, after "(d)" insert "A" and delete "sites" and insert "site"

Page 19, line 22, after "not" insert "ready to be"

Page 19, line 32, delete "on the number"

Page 19, line 33, delete "of students retained"

Page 19, line 34, after the comma, insert "on the number of students retained"

Page 26, after line 18, insert:

"(g) In developing policies and assessment processes to hold schools and districts accountable for high levels of academic standards and achievement, the commissioner shall acknowledge the impact of significant demographic factors such as residential instability, the number of single parent families, parents' level of education, and parents' income level on school outcomes under this subdivision so that state and local policy makers can understand the educational implications of changes in districts' demographic profiles over time."

Page 29, after line 35, insert:

"**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective July 1, 2012."

Page 40, after line 27, insert:

"Sec. 29. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 123B.143, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Contract; duties.** All districts maintaining a classified secondary school must employ a superintendent who shall be an ex officio nonvoting member of the school board. The authority for selection and employment of a superintendent must be vested in the board in all cases. An individual employed by a board as a superintendent shall have an initial employment contract for a period of time no longer than three years from the date of employment. Any subsequent employment contract must not exceed a period of three years. A board, at its discretion, may or may not renew an employment contract. A board must not, by action or inaction, extend the duration of an existing employment contract. Beginning 365 days prior to the expiration date of an existing

employment contract, a board may negotiate and enter into a subsequent employment contract to take effect upon the expiration of the existing contract. A subsequent contract must be contingent upon the employee completing the terms of an existing contract. If a contract between a board and a superintendent is terminated prior to the date specified in the contract, the board may not enter into another superintendent contract with that same individual that has a term that extends beyond the date specified in the terminated contract. A board may terminate a superintendent during the term of an employment contract for any of the grounds specified in section 122A.40, subdivision 9 or 13. A superintendent shall not rely upon an employment contract with a board to assert any other continuing contract rights in the position of superintendent under section 122A.40. Notwithstanding the provisions of sections 122A.40, subdivision 10 or 11, 123A.32, 123A.75, or any other law to the contrary, no individual shall have a right to employment as a superintendent based on order of employment in any district. If two or more districts enter into an agreement for the purchase or sharing of the services of a superintendent, the contracting districts have the absolute right to select one of the individuals employed to serve as superintendent in one of the contracting districts and no individual has a right to employment as the superintendent to provide all or part of the services based on order of employment in a contracting district. The superintendent of a district shall perform the following:

(1) visit and supervise the schools in the district, report and make recommendations about their condition when advisable or on request by the board;

(2) recommend to the board employment and dismissal of teachers;

(3) annually evaluate each school principal assigned responsibility for supervising a school building within the district, consistent with section 123B.147, subdivision 3, paragraph (b);

(4) superintend school grading practices and examinations for promotions;

(4) (5) make reports required by the commissioner; and

(5) (6) perform other duties prescribed by the board.

EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective for the 2013-2014 school year and later.

Sec. 30. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 123B.147, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Duties; evaluation.** (a) The principal shall provide administrative, supervisory, and instructional leadership services, under the supervision of the superintendent of schools of the district and ~~in accordance with~~ according to the policies, rules, and regulations of the ~~school board of education~~, for the planning, management, operation, and evaluation of the education program of the building or buildings to which the principal is assigned.

(b) To enhance a principal's leadership skills and support and improve teaching practices, school performance, and student achievement, a district must develop and implement a performance-based system for annually evaluating school principals assigned to supervise a school building within the district. The evaluation must be designed to improve teaching and learning by supporting the principal in shaping the school's professional environment and developing teacher quality, performance, and effectiveness. The annual evaluation must:

(1) support and improve a principal's instructional leadership, organizational management, and professional development, and strengthen the principal's capacity in the areas of instruction, supervision, evaluation, and teacher development;

(2) include formative and summative evaluations;

(3) be consistent with a principal's job description, a district's long-term plans and goals, and the principal's own professional multiyear growth plans and goals, all of which must support the principal's leadership behaviors and practices, rigorous curriculum, school performance, and high-quality instruction;

(4) include on-the-job observations and previous evaluations;

(5) allow surveys to help identify a principal's effectiveness, leadership skills and processes, and strengths and weaknesses in exercising leadership in pursuit of school success;

(6) use longitudinal data on student academic growth as an evaluation component and incorporate district achievement goals and targets; and

(7) be linked to professional development that emphasizes improved teaching and learning, curriculum and instruction, student learning, and a collaborative professional culture.

The provisions of this paragraph are intended to provide districts with sufficient flexibility to accommodate district needs and goals related to developing, supporting, and evaluating principals.

EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective for the 2013-2014 school year and later."

Page 44, after line 12, insert:

"(c) The commission must submit a biennial report to the legislature that records and evaluates literacy program data to determine the efficacy of the programs under this subdivision."

Page 50, line 31, delete "school nurses, licensed school social workers, licensed" and delete the comma

Page 52, after line 19, insert:

"Sec. 53. **IMPLEMENTING A PERFORMANCE-BASED EVALUATION SYSTEM FOR PRINCIPALS.**

(a) To implement the requirements of Minnesota Statutes, sections 123B.143, subdivision 1, clause (3), and 123B.147, subdivision 3, paragraph (b), the commissioner of education, the Minnesota Association of Secondary School Principals, and the Minnesota Association of Elementary School Principals must convene a group of recognized and qualified experts and interested stakeholders, including principals, superintendents, teachers, school board members, and parents, among other stakeholders, to develop a performance-based system model for annually evaluating school principals. In developing the system model, the group must at least consider how principals develop and maintain:

(1) high standards for student performance;

(2) rigorous curriculum;

(3) quality instruction;

(4) a culture of learning and professional behavior;

(5) connections to external communities;

(6) systemic performance accountability; and

(7) leadership behaviors that create effective schools and improve school performance, including how to plan for, implement, support, advocate for, communicate about, and monitor continuous and improved learning.

The group also may consider whether to establish a multitiered evaluation system that supports newly licensed principals in becoming highly skilled school leaders and provides opportunities for advanced learning for more experienced school leaders.

(b) The commissioner, the Minnesota Association of Secondary School Principals, and the Minnesota Association of Elementary School Principals must submit a written report and all the group's working papers to the education committees of the legislature by February 1, 2012, discussing the group's responses to paragraph (a) and its recommendations for a performance-based system model for annually evaluating school principals. The group convened under this section expires June 1, 2012.

EFFECTIVE DATE. This section is effective the day following final enactment and applies to principal evaluations beginning in the 2013-2014 school year and later."

Page 65, lines 31 to 36, delete the new language and strike the old language

Page 66, strike lines 1 and 2

Page 66, line 13, after the period, insert "The notice must state "Early childhood developmental screening helps a school district identify children who may benefit from district and community resources available to help in their development. Early childhood developmental screening includes a vision screening that helps detect potential eye problems but is not a substitute for a comprehensive eye exam by an ophthalmologist or optometrist.""

Page 67, delete lines 5 to 9

Renumber the sections in sequence and correct the internal references

Correct the title numbers accordingly

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

The report was adopted.

Shimanski from the Committee on Judiciary Policy and Finance to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1408, A bill for an act relating to elections; changing certain procedures and requirements related to vacancies in nomination; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, sections 204B.04, subdivision 2; 204B.13, subdivisions 1, 4; 205.13, subdivision 1a; 205A.06, subdivision 1a; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2010, sections 204B.41; 204D.169; 205.065, subdivision 7; 205A.03, subdivision 6.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 2, after line 33, insert:

"Sec. 7. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

Sections 1 to 6 are effective the day following final enactment."

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass.

The report was adopted.

Hoppe from the Committee on Commerce and Regulatory Reform to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1420, A bill for an act relating to commerce; regulating the provision of certain goods and services of residential contractors; providing enforcement; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 325E.66.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 325E.66, is amended to read:

325E.66 INSURANCE CLAIMS FOR RESIDENTIAL ~~ROOFING~~ CONTRACTING GOODS AND SERVICES.

Subdivision 1. **Payment or rebate of insurance deductible.** A residential contractor providing the repair or replacement of residential roofing goods and services or siding to be paid by an insured from the proceeds of a property or casualty insurance policy shall not, as an inducement to the sale or provision of goods or services to an insured, advertise or promise to pay ~~or rebate,~~ directly or indirectly, all or part of any applicable insurance deductible or offer to compensate an insured for providing any service to the insured. If a residential contractor violates this section, the insurer to whom the insured tendered the claim shall not be obligated to consider the estimate prepared by the residential contractor.

For purposes of this section, "residential contractor" means a residential roofer, as defined in section 326B.802, subdivision 14; a residential contractor, as defined in section 326B.802, subdivision 11; and a residential remodeler, as defined in section 326B.802, subdivision 12; and a siding contractor registered under section 326B.802, subdivision 15.

Subd. 2. ~~Violation~~ **Private remedy.** If a residential contractor violates subdivision 1, the insured or the applicable insurer may bring an action against the residential contractor in a court of competent jurisdiction for damages sustained by the insured or insurer as a consequence of the residential ~~roofer's~~ contractor's violation.

Subd. 3. **Public enforcement.** The commissioner of labor and industry shall enforce this section under sections 326B.081 to 326B.085.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 326B.811, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Required.** A person who has entered into a written contract with a ~~contractor~~ residential roofer or a siding contractor registered under section 326B.802, subdivision 15, to provide ~~residential roofing~~ goods and services to be paid by the insured from the proceeds of a property or casualty insurance policy has the right to cancel

the contract within 72 hours after the insured has been notified by the insurer that the claim has been denied. Cancellation is evidenced by the insured giving written notice of cancellation to the contractor at the address stated in the contract. Notice of cancellation, if given by mail, is effective upon deposit in a mailbox, properly addressed to the contractor and postage prepaid. Notice of cancellation need not take a particular form and is sufficient if it indicates, by any form of written expression, the intention of the insured not to be bound by the contract."

Correct the title numbers accordingly

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass.

The report was adopted.

Anderson, S., from the Committee on Redistricting to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1425, A bill for an act relating to redistricting; adopting a legislative districting plan for use in 2012 and thereafter; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, sections 2.031, subdivision 1; 2.91, subdivision 1; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2010, sections 2.031, subdivision 2; 2.444; 2.484.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 2.031, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Legislative districts.** (a) The representatives in the senate and house of representatives are apportioned throughout the state in 67 senate districts and 134 house of representatives districts. Each senate district is entitled to elect one senator and each house of representatives district is entitled to elect one representative.

(b) Legislative redistricting plan L1101-0, on file with the Geographic Information Services Office of the Legislative Coordinating Commission and published on its Web site on May 2, 2011, is adopted and describes the legislative districts within this state. Each senate district is composed of the two house districts, A and B, of the same number.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 2.91, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Distribution.** Upon enactment of a redistricting plan for the legislature or for Congress, the Legislative Coordinating Commission shall deposit the plan with the secretary of state. The secretary of state shall provide copies of the relevant portions of the redistricting plan to each county auditor, who shall provide a copy of the relevant portions of the plan to each municipal clerk within the county. The secretary of state, with the cooperation of the commissioner of administration, shall make copies of the plan file, maps, and tables available to the public for the cost of publication. ~~The revisor of statutes shall code a metes and bounds description of the districts in Minnesota Statutes.~~

Sec. 3. **DISTRICTING PRINCIPLES.**

Subdivision 1. **Applicability.** The principles in this section apply to legislative and congressional districts.

Subd. 2. **Nesting.** A representative district may not be divided in the formation of a senate district.

Subd. 3. **Equal population.** (a) Legislative districts must be substantially equal in population. The population of a legislative district must not deviate from the ideal by more than one percent, plus or minus.

(b) Congressional districts must be as nearly equal in population as practicable.

Subd. 4. **Contiguity; compactness.** The districts must be composed of convenient contiguous territory. To the extent consistent with the other principles in this section, districts should be compact. Contiguity by water is sufficient if the water is not a serious obstacle to travel within the district. Point contiguity is not sufficient.

Subd. 5. **Numbering.** (a) Legislative districts must be numbered in a regular series, beginning with house district 1A in the northwest corner of the state and proceeding across the state from west to east, north to south, but bypassing the 11-county metropolitan area until the southeast corner has been reached; then to the 11-county metropolitan area outside the cities of Minneapolis and St. Paul; then in Minneapolis and St. Paul.

(b) Congressional district numbers must begin with district one in the southeast corner of the state and end with district eight in the northeast corner of the state.

Subd. 6. **Minority representation.** (a) The dilution of racial or ethnic minority voting strength is contrary to the laws of the United States and the state of Minnesota. These principles must not be construed to supersede any provision of the Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended.

(b) A redistricting plan must not have the intent or effect of dispersing or concentrating minority population in a manner that prevents minority communities from electing their candidates of choice.

Subd. 7. **Minor civil divisions.** (a) A county, city, or town must not be unduly divided unless required to meet equal population requirements or to form districts composed of convenient, contiguous territory.

(b) A county, city, or town is not unduly divided in the formation of a legislative or congressional district if:

(1) the division occurs because a portion of a city or town is noncontiguous with another portion of the same city or town; or

(2) despite the division, the known population of any affected county, city, or town remains wholly located within a single district.

Subd. 8. **Preserving communities of interest.** (a) Districts should attempt to preserve identifiable communities of interest where that can be done in compliance with the preceding principles.

(b) For purposes of this subdivision, "communities of interest" means recognizable areas with similarities of interests, including but not limited to racial, ethnic, geographic, social, or cultural interests.

Subd. 9. **Data to be used.** The geographic areas and population counts used in maps, tables, and legal descriptions of the districts must be those used by the Geographic Information Services Office of the Legislative Coordinating Commission. The population counts will be the 2010 block population counts provided to the state under Public Law 94-171, subject to correction of any errors acknowledged by the United States Census Bureau.

Subd. 10. **Consideration of plans.** A redistricting plan must not be considered for adoption by the senate or house of representatives until a block equivalency file showing the district to which each census block has been assigned, in a form prescribed by the director of the Geographic Information Services Office, has been filed with the director.

Subd. 11. **Priority of principles.** Where it is not possible to fully comply with the principles contained in subdivisions 1 to 8, a redistricting plan must give priority to those principles in the order in which they are listed in this section, except to the extent that doing so would violate federal or state law.

EFFECTIVE DATE; EXPIRATION. This section is effective the day following final enactment and applies to any plan for districts enacted or established for use at the state primary in 2012 and thereafter. This section expires June 1, 2012.

Sec. 4. **REPEALER.**

Minnesota Statutes 2010, sections 2.031, subdivision 2; 2.444; and 2.484, are repealed.

Sec. 5. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

Except where otherwise provided, this act is effective for the state primary election in 2012 and thereafter."

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration.

The report was adopted.

Gunther from the Committee on Jobs and Economic Development Finance to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1476, A bill for an act relating to labor and employment; modifying prevailing wage provisions; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 177.42, subdivisions 4, 6.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 2, after line 9, insert:

"Sec. 3. **[177.421] PREVAILING WAGE DETERMINATIONS.**

Subdivision 1. **Highway and heavy construction.** The department shall, at least once every two calendar years, determine and certify prevailing wage rates applicable to state projects that are similar in nature to public and private highway and heavy construction projects where the estimated total cost of completing the project is \$25,000 or more.

Subd. 2. **Commercial type construction.** The department shall, at least once every two calendar years, determine and certify prevailing wage rates applicable to state projects that are similar in nature to public and private commercial projects where the estimated total cost of completing the project is \$2,500 or more.

Subd. 3. **Survey data.** Each wage survey shall be based upon work performed in the 24 months preceding the date the survey is commenced and the resulting wage determinations certified following the close of the survey.

Subd. 4. **Rule modification.** The commissioner shall adopt or amend rules as necessary to reflect this section. Rules may be adopted or amended using the process under section 14.388.

Sec. 4. **REPEALER.**

Minnesota Rules, part 5200.1020, subparts 1, 2, and 5, are repealed."

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 2, before "modifying" insert "adding and"

Correct the title numbers accordingly

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill be re-referred to the Committee on Ways and Means without further recommendation.

The report was adopted.

Shimanski from the Committee on Judiciary Policy and Finance to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1478, A bill for an act relating to human services; modifying certain provisions regarding the Minnesota sex offender program; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, sections 253B.141, subdivision 2; 253B.185, subdivisions 1, 16, by adding subdivisions; 253B.19, subdivision 2; 609.485, subdivision 2.

Reported the same back with the recommendation that the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

The report was adopted.

Shimanski from the Committee on Judiciary Policy and Finance to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1500, A bill for an act relating to human services; making changes to chemical and mental health services; making rate reforms; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, sections 245.462, subdivision 8; 245.467, subdivision 2; 245.4874, subdivision 1; 245A.03, subdivision 7; 253B.02, subdivision 9; 254B.03, subdivisions 5, 9; 254B.05; 254B.12; 254B.13, subdivision 3; 256.9693; 256B.0622, subdivision 8; 256B.0623, subdivisions 3, 8; 256B.0624, subdivisions 2, 4, 6; 256B.0625, subdivisions 23, 38; 256B.0926, subdivision 2; 256B.0947; 260C.157, subdivision 3; 260D.01; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2010, sections 254B.01, subdivision 7; 256B.0622, subdivision 8a.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Page 1, line 21, strike "one day" and insert "two days"

Page 2, delete section 3 and insert:

"Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 245.4874, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Duties of county board.** (a) The county board must:

(1) develop a system of affordable and locally available children's mental health services according to sections 245.487 to 245.4889;

- (2) establish a mechanism providing for interagency coordination as specified in section 245.4875, subdivision 6;
- (3) consider the assessment of unmet needs in the county as reported by the local children's mental health advisory council under section 245.4875, subdivision 5, paragraph (b), clause (3). The county shall provide, upon request of the local children's mental health advisory council, readily available data to assist in the determination of unmet needs;
- (4) assure that parents and providers in the county receive information about how to gain access to services provided according to sections 245.487 to 245.4889;
- (5) coordinate the delivery of children's mental health services with services provided by social services, education, corrections, health, and vocational agencies to improve the availability of mental health services to children and the cost-effectiveness of their delivery;
- (6) assure that mental health services delivered according to sections 245.487 to 245.4889 are delivered expeditiously and are appropriate to the child's diagnostic assessment and individual treatment plan;
- (7) provide the community with information about predictors and symptoms of emotional disturbances and how to access children's mental health services according to sections 245.4877 and 245.4878;
- (8) provide for case management services to each child with severe emotional disturbance according to sections 245.486; 245.4871, subdivisions 3 and 4; and 245.4881, subdivisions 1, 3, and 5;
- (9) provide for screening of each child under section 245.4885 upon admission to a residential treatment facility, acute care hospital inpatient treatment, or informal admission to a regional treatment center;
- (10) prudently administer grants and purchase-of-service contracts that the county board determines are necessary to fulfill its responsibilities under sections 245.487 to 245.4889;
- (11) assure that mental health professionals, mental health practitioners, and case managers employed by or under contract to the county to provide mental health services are qualified under section 245.4871;
- (12) assure that children's mental health services are coordinated with adult mental health services specified in sections 245.461 to 245.486 so that a continuum of mental health services is available to serve persons with mental illness, regardless of the person's age;
- (13) assure that culturally competent mental health consultants are used as necessary to assist the county board in assessing and providing appropriate treatment for children of cultural or racial minority heritage; and
- (14) consistent with section 245.486, arrange for or provide a children's mental health screening ~~to~~ for:
- (i) a child receiving child protective services ~~or~~;
 - (ii) a child in out-of-home placement~~;~~;
 - (iii) a child for whom parental rights have been terminated~~;~~;
 - (iv) a child found to be delinquent~~, and; or~~
 - (v) a child found to have committed a juvenile petty offense for the third or subsequent time~~, unless~~.

A children's mental health screening is not required when a screening or diagnostic assessment has been performed within the previous 180 days, or the child is currently under the care of a mental health professional.

(b) When a child is receiving protective services or is in out-of-home placement, the court or county agency must notify a parent or guardian whose parental rights have not been terminated of the potential mental health screening and the option to prevent the screening by notifying the court or county agency in writing.

(c) When a child is found to be delinquent or a child is found to have committed a juvenile petty offense for the third or subsequent time, the court or county agency must obtain written informed consent from the parent or legal guardian before a screening is conducted unless the court, notwithstanding the parent's failure to consent, determines that the screening is in the child's best interest.

(d) The screening shall be conducted with a screening instrument approved by the commissioner of human services according to criteria that are updated and issued annually to ensure that approved screening instruments are valid and useful for child welfare and juvenile justice populations,~~and~~ Screenings shall be conducted by a mental health practitioner as defined in section 245.4871, subdivision 26, or a probation officer or local social services agency staff person who is trained in the use of the screening instrument. Training in the use of the instrument shall include:

- (1) training in the administration of the instrument;
- (2) the interpretation of its validity given the child's current circumstances;
- (3) the state and federal data practices laws and confidentiality standards;
- (4) the parental consent requirement; and
- (5) providing respect for families and cultural values.

If the screen indicates a need for assessment, the child's family, or if the family lacks mental health insurance, the local social services agency, in consultation with the child's family, shall have conducted a diagnostic assessment, including a functional assessment, as defined in section 245.4871. The administration of the screening shall safeguard the privacy of children receiving the screening and their families and shall comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, chapter 13, and the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191. Screening results shall be considered private data and the commissioner shall not collect individual screening results.

~~(b)~~ (e) When the county board refers clients to providers of children's therapeutic services and supports under section 256B.0943, the county board must clearly identify the desired services components not covered under section 256B.0943 and identify the reimbursement source for those requested services, the method of payment, and the payment rate to the provider."

Page 8, line 16, delete the period and insert a semicolon

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass.

The report was adopted.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

H. F. Nos. 264, 392, 1018, 1179, 1261, 1408, 1420 and 1500 were read for the second time.

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS

The following House Files were introduced:

Hornstein introduced:

H. F. No. 1654, A bill for an act relating to gambling; requiring a study and report on the social and economic costs of gambling in Minnesota; appropriating money.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Commerce and Regulatory Reform.

Bills introduced:

H. F. No. 1655, A bill for an act relating to public employment; requiring written request for dues check off; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 179A.06, subdivision 6.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Government Operations and Elections.

Bills introduced:

H. F. No. 1656, A bill for an act relating to education; requiring financial report from teacher's union; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 179A.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Education Reform.

Laine introduced:

H. F. No. 1657, A bill for an act relating to state government; designating the black bear as the state mammal; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 1.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Environment, Energy and Natural Resources Policy and Finance.

Eken introduced:

H. F. No. 1658, A bill for an act relating to taxation; minerals; Island Lake Township; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 298.75, by adding a subdivision.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Taxes.

Franson introduced:

H. F. No. 1659, A bill for an act relating to state government; requiring the commissioner of administration to enter into a contract for state agency real estate lease evaluation services; increasing the length of time required for notice of cancellation of state leases; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 16B.24, subdivision 6.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Government Operations and Elections.

Nornes introduced:

H. F. No. 1660, A bill for an act relating to the city of Fergus Falls; authorizing the city of Fergus Falls to establish and exercise border city development zone powers; appropriating money.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Taxes.

Hoppe, Zellers, Holberg, Davids, Dean and Franson introduced:

H. F. No. 1661, A bill for an act proposing an amendment to the Minnesota Constitution by adding a section to article XI; limiting the level of budgeted spending to 98 percent of the amount forecast to be collected in the biennium.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

Kiffmeyer; Westrom; Anderson, D.; Nornes; Barrett; McElfatrick; Runbeck; Stensrud; Kiel; Franson and Abeler introduced:

H. F. No. 1662, A bill for an act proposing an amendment to the Minnesota Constitution, article VII, section 1; requiring voters to present photographic identification; providing photographic identification to voters at no charge; requiring equal verification standards for all voters.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Government Operations and Elections.

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following message was received from the Senate:

Mr. Speaker:

I hereby announce the passage by the Senate of the following Senate Files, herewith transmitted:

S. F. Nos. 346, 1134 and 1135.

CAL R. LUDEMAN, Secretary of the Senate

FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

S. F. No. 346, A bill for an act relating to the Mississippi River Parkway Commission; changing its expiration date; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 161.1419, subdivision 8.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

S. F. No. 1134, A bill for an act relating to health; changing provisions for body art technicians; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, sections 146B.03, subdivision 4; 146B.04, subdivision 1; 146B.06, subdivision 5; 146B.10, subdivision 1.

The bill was read for the first time.

Liebling moved that S. F. No. 1134 and H. F. No. 1445, now on the General Register, be referred to the Chief Clerk for comparison. The motion prevailed.

S. F. No. 1135, A bill for an act relating to health; extending the Maternal and Child Health Advisory Task Force; amending Minnesota Statutes 2010, section 145.881, subdivision 1.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Government Operations and Elections.

CALENDAR FOR THE DAY

Dean moved that the Calendar for the Day be continued. The motion prevailed.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

Beard moved that the name of Kiel be added as an author on H. F. No. 72. The motion prevailed.

Peppin moved that the name of Murray be added as an author on H. F. No. 173. The motion prevailed.

Sanders moved that the name of Murray be added as an author on H. F. No. 233. The motion prevailed.

Shimanski moved that his name be stricken as an author on H. F. No. 255. The motion prevailed.

Urdahl moved that his name be stricken as an author on H. F. No. 495. The motion prevailed.

Champion moved that the name of Moran be added as an author on H. F. No. 718. The motion prevailed.

Hornstein moved that the name of Loeffler be added as an author on H. F. No. 852. The motion prevailed.

Sanders moved that the name of Murray be added as an author on H. F. No. 1036. The motion prevailed.

Thissen moved that his name be stricken as an author on H. F. No. 1303. The motion prevailed.

Greiling moved that her name be stricken as an author on H. F. No. 1381. The motion prevailed.

Bills moved that the name of Dettmer be added as an author on H. F. No. 1386. The motion prevailed.

Mazorol moved that the name of Wardlow be added as an author on H. F. No. 1531. The motion prevailed.

McFarlane moved that the names of Loeffler, Dittrich and Ward be added as authors on H. F. No. 1579. The motion prevailed.

Anderson, P., moved that his name be stricken as an author on H. F. No. 1597. The motion prevailed.

Kahn moved that the name of Lillie be added as an author on H. F. No. 1623. The motion prevailed.

Mariani moved that the name of Slocum be added as an author on H. F. No. 1625. The motion prevailed.

Clark moved that H. F. No. 307 be recalled from the Committee on Environment, Energy and Natural Resources Policy and Finance and be re-referred to the Committee on Capital Investment. The motion prevailed.

Norton moved that H. F. No. 1633 be recalled from the Committee on Commerce and Regulatory Reform and be re-referred to the Committee on State Government Finance. The motion prevailed.

ADJOURNMENT

Dean moved that when the House adjourns today it adjourn until 12:30 p.m., Thursday, May 5, 2011. The motion prevailed.

Dean moved that the House adjourn. The motion prevailed, and the Speaker declared the House stands adjourned until 12:30 p.m., Thursday, May 5, 2011.

ALBIN A. MATHIOWETZ, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

